2	IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA				
3					
4		I	Electronically File	d 23 n m	
5	SASHA WILLIAMS,	Docket No. 78769	Sep 24 2019 03:3 Elizabeth A. Brow	ю р.пі. /N	
	Appellant,	Docket No. 78709	Clerk of Supreme	Court	
6		District Court No. C	2287414		
7	VS.				
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,				
9	,				
10	Respondent.				
11					
12					
	Appeal from Judgment of Conviction of the Eighth Judicial District Court in Clark County, Nevada				
13					
14					
15					
16	The HON. DOUGLAS	HERNDON, presiding			
17	Appellant's Opening Brief				
18					
19	LANCE J. HENDRON, ESQ.	STEVEN B. WOI	LFSON		
20	Nevada Bar No. 11151	CLARK COUNT			
	625 South Eighth Street	200 Lewis Avenue	<i>'</i>

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is an appeal of a final judgment in a criminal case before Eighth Judicial District Court. The Supreme Court of Nevada has jurisdiction.¹ The judgment of conviction was entered on April 10, 2019.² A notice of appeal was timely filed on May 8, 2019 and docketed in the Supreme Court on May 13, 2019.³

ROUTING STATEMENT

Under the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, Rule 17(a)(13)-(14), this matter is presumptively before the Court of Appeals.

¹ NRS 177.015(3).

² Appellant's Appendix ("AA").

³ Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, Rule 4(b)(1)(A).

ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

I. Whether the District Court erred in failing to allow the Appellant to cross-examine victim speakers at her sentencing.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Appellant herein challenges the District Court's error in failing to allow her an opportunity to cross-examine victim speakers at the time of sentencing.

This is a post-conviction case. The Appellant was sentenced on April 4, 2019 to an aggregate sentence of 120 months to 432 months with 1,499 days credit for time served. At the time of sentencing, the Appellant was not given the opportunity to cross-examine victim speakers.

This Appeal follows.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

At sentencing, three speakers provided a statement to the court: Evelyn Anderson, Gwendolyn Tolbert, and Vennie Tolbert-Rodgers. Evelyn Anderson provided facts about the case and discussed the Appellant's involvement and role in the crime. Ms. Anderson stated that the Appellant "planned this" and "this was all planned that day from her." Gwendolyn Tolbert directly addressed the Appellant

⁴ AA Vol 1 009 (lines 1 to 3).

while speaking and stated that she does not believe the Appellant has changed.⁵
Vennie Tolbert-Rodgers stated that the Appellant "is not innocent in this situation,"
"she had several conversations with City prior to," "she did not stop the situation from happening," and "she was in there and didn't stop the situation as it was unfolding."

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The District Court erred in failing to allow the Appellant to question victim speakers at sentencing, resulting in a denial of due process. Under NRS 176.015, the court must allow a victim to "reasonable express any views concerning the crime, the person responsible, the impact of the crime on the victim, and the need for restitution." If a victim's statement of the crime gives significant facts not previously raised, then cross-examination and even a continuance may be required. At the Appellant's sentencing, the victim speakers raised significant facts not previously presented, and the opportunity for cross-examination or a continuance

⁵ AA Vol 1 013 (lines 13 to 14).

⁶ AA Vol 1 015 (lines 7 to 10).

⁷ NRS 176.015(3)(b).

⁸ Buschauer v. State, 804 P.2d 1046, 1048 (Nev. 1990).

was not provided. Therefore, the Appellant's sentence must be vacated, and her case remanded for re-sentencing before a different judge.

ARGUMENT

Each speaker at the Appellant's sentencing exceeded the bounds of the Nevada Revised Statutes by providing significant facts not previously presented. The District Court's failure to give the Appellant the opportunity to cross-examine the speakers constitutes a violation of due process principles. Because of this violation, the Appellant's sentence must be vacated, and her case remanded for resentencing with an opportunity to cross-examine speakers who go beyond the permissible boundaries provided in NRS 176.015(3)(b).

1. Legal Standard

Victims are afforded the opportunity at a defendant's sentencing to "reasonably express any views concerning the crime, the person responsible, the impact of the crime on the victim and the need for restitution." The statute is broad in the sense of what a victim is allowed to express; however, it is not without limitations. The scope of due process protections afforded a defendant will depend

⁹ NRS 176.015(3)(b).

¹⁰ Dieudonne v. State, 245 P.3d 1202, 1208 (Nev. 2011).

on the scope of the impact statement.¹¹ When a victim's statement of the crime presents significant facts not previously raised, cross-examination and even a continuance, if requested, may be required. 12

2. The Appellant's due process rights were violated, and she is entitled to resentencing.

The victim speakers' statements presented significant facts not previously raised, yet the opportunity for cross-examination by the Appellant was not provided. For example, the speakers indicated that the Appellant was responsible for the murder in that she planned it, she allowed it to happen, and she did not stop it as she watched the plan unfold. 13 Despite these accusations, the Appellant was not afforded the opportunity to cross-examine the speakers regarding the blame they assigned to the Appellant.

¹¹ Buschauer, 804 P.2d at 1048 (Nev. 1990).

¹³ AA Vol 1 009 (lines 1 to 3); 013 (lines 13 to 14); 015 (lines 7 to 10).

CONCLUSION

The Appellant submits that the District Court erred when it failed to provide her with the opportunity to question victim speakers at the time of her sentencing.

Based on the facts and legal argument, the Appellant respectfully requests that this Honorable Court vacate her sentence and remand her case to the District Court for a new sentencing hearing with the opportunity to question any victim speakers.