#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

SASHA WILLIAMS,

Appellant,

Electronically Filed Oct 16 2019 01:49 p.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

v.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

Case No. 78769

### RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF

Appeal From Judgment of Conviction Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County

LANCE J. HENDRON, ESQ. Nevada Bar #011151 625 South Eighth Street Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 (702) 758-5858 STEVEN B. WOLFSON Clark County District Attorney Nevada Bar #001565 Regional Justice Center 200 Lewis Avenue Post Office Box 552212 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212 (702) 671-2500 State of Nevada

# STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE

1. Whether Appellant should have been allowed to cross-examine the three victim speakers at her sentencing hearing.

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 13, 2013, the State charged Appellant and her co-conspirators, Maurice Sims, Brandon Range, and Darron Morris by way of Indictment. I Respondent's Appendix (RA) 001. Appellant was charged with the following: Count 3 – Conspiracy to Commit Burglary (Gross Misdemeanor – NRS 100.480, 205.060),

Count 4 – Burglary While in Possession of a Firearm (Category B Felony – NRS 205.060), Count 5 – Conspiracy to Commit Robbery (Category B Felony – NRS 199.480, 200.380), Count 6 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon (Category B Felony – NRS 200.380, 193.165), Count 7 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon (Category B Felony – NRS 200.380, 193.165), Count 8 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon (Category B Felony – NRS 200.380, 193.165), Count 9 – Conspiracy to Commit Murder (Category B Felony – NRS 199.480, 200.010), Count 10 – Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon (Category A Felony – NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165) Count 11 – Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon (Category A Felony – NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165), and Count 12 – Attempt Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon (Category B Felony – NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165), I RA 003-007.

On April 13, 2016, Appellant pled guilty in District Court and signed a Guilty Plea Agreement. I RA 010. The Guilty Plea Agreement and Plea Transcript were filed under seal. <u>Id</u>. Appellant was arraigned and pled guilty to the following: Count 5 – Conspiracy to Commit Robbery, Count 6 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon, Count 7 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon, and Count 8 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon. <u>Id</u>.

On April 3, 2019, the district court sentenced Appellant as follows: Count 5 – Conspiracy to Commit Robbery, to a minimum of twenty-four (24) months and a

maximum of seventy-two (72) months in the Nevada Department of Corrections; Count 6 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon, to a minimum of forty-eight (48) months and a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) months in the Nevada Department of Corrections, consecutive to Count 5; Count 7 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon, to a minimum of forty-eight (48) months and a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) months in the Nevada Department of Corrections, concurrent to Count 6; and Count 8 – Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon, to a minimum of forty-eight (48) months and a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) months in the Nevada Department of Corrections, concurrent to Count 7. I AA 021. Appellant was sentenced to an overall aggregate sentence of a minimum of one hundred twenty (120) months and a maximum of three hundred sixty (360) months in the Nevada Department of Corrections, with 1,499 days credit for time served. Id.

The Judgment of Conviction was filed on April 10, 2019. I RA 011-012. An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on June 11, 2019. I RA 013-015. Appellant filed the instant Opening Brief on September 24, 2019.

# STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On January 8, 2013, the Appellant and her co-conspirators entered Laurice Brightman ("Brightman"), Anthony Anderson ("Anderson"), and Evin Russell's ("Russell") apartment with the intent to take their personal property. I RA 003. Appellant and her co-conspirators entered the victims' apartment with firearms. Id.

The co-conspirators threatened the victims by brandishing their firearms, and began to take the victims' television, Sony PlayStation, MacBook Pro, cellular telephones, jewelry, and money. I RA 004. During the commission of this robbery, one of the co-conspirators began shooting at the victims. I RA 006. Multiple shots went off in the apartment and both Russell and Anderson were killed. <u>Id</u>. The third victim, Brightman, was also shot, but survived. I RA 007.

## **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

Appellant did not have the right to cross-examine the three victim impact speakers at her sentencing because they did not discuss any specific prior bad acts of the Appellant. Instead, they discussed how the crime impacted them and their families, the Appellant's involvement in the crime, and their desired sentences. Cross-examination is only warranted when the victim speakers discuss any of a defendant's specific prior bad acts that are not in the record or do not relate to the crime itself. Because the speakers did not discuss any of Appellant's acts outside of the crime itself, cross-examination was not warranted. Therefore, the conviction should be affirmed.

## **ARGUMENT**

I. APPELLANT DID NOT HAVE THE RIGHT TO CROSS-EXAMINE THE VICTIM SPEAKERS AT HER SENTENCING BECAUSE THEY DID NOT DISCUSS ANY SPECIFIC PRIOR ACTS OF THE APPELLANT.

Initially, if Appellant did not object or raise a specific issue and/or argument below, the claim is waived and reviewable only for plain error. Dermody v. City of Reno, 113 Nev. 207, 210-11, 931 P.2d 1354, 1357 (1997); Guy v. State, 108 Nev. 770, 780, 839 P.2d 578, 58 (1992), cert. denied, 507 U.S. 1009, 113 S. Ct. 1656 (1993); Davis v. State, 107 Nev. 600, 606, 817 P.2d 1169, 1173 (1991). Plain error review asks:

"To amount to plain error, the 'error must be so unmistakable that it is apparent from a casual inspection of the record." <u>Vega v. State</u>, 126 Nev. \_\_\_, \_\_\_, 236 P.3d 632, 637 (2010) (quoting <u>Nelson</u>, 123 Nev. at 543, 170 P.3d at 524). In addition, "the defendant [must] demonstrate [] that the error affected his or her substantial rights, by causing 'actual prejudice or a miscarriage of justice." <u>Valdez</u>, 124 Nev. at 1190, 196 P.3d at 477 (quoting <u>Green v. State</u>, 119 Nev. 542, 545, 80 P.3d 93, 95 (2003))). Thus, reversal for plain error is only warranted if the error is readily apparent and the appellant demonstrates that the error was prejudicial to his substantial rights.

Martinorellan v. State, 131 Nev. \_\_\_, \_\_\_, 343 P.3d, 590, 594 (2015).

Given that Appellant never objected to the victim speakers at her sentencing hearing, this Court must find plain error to warrant reversal.

During a defendant's sentencing hearing, the court shall allow a victim the opportunity to "reasonably express any views concerning the crime, the person responsible, the impact of the crime on the victim and the need for restitution." NRS 176.012(3)(b). "Where the impact statement will refer to any specific prior acts of the defendant ... due process requires that the accuser be under oath, an opportunity for cross-examination and, perhaps must importantly, reasonable notice of the prior

acts which the impact statement will contain." <u>Buschauer v. State</u>, 106 Nev. 890, 894, 804 P.2d 1046, 1048 (1990). In <u>Buschauer</u>, the victim's mother made several allegations of previous spousal abuse by the defendant. <u>Id</u>. at 895. The allegations that she made were not in the record and were not related to any of the spousal abuse charges in the case. <u>Id</u>.

Here, Appellant had no need to cross-examine the three victim speakers, because none discussed any prior specific bad acts of the Appellant. The first speaker, Evelyn Anderson, was one victim Anthony's mother. I AA 008. In response to Appellant's counsel, she told the court that, "This was all planned that day from her. He said that all the things about the – she was supposed to be – he was making her do this and do that. No. It was boyfriend and her. She planned this." I AA 009. She went into more detail about the crime itself, the Appellant's role in the crime, the impact this had on her life, and that she hopes Appellant receives the maximum sentence. I AA 009-010. She never once mentions any prior specific bad acts about the Appellant.

The second speaker, Gwendolyn Tolbert, was the aunt of one of the victims. I AA 011. During her victim impact statement, she started to direct her attention towards the Appellant, and said, "So, I don't feel like what you're saying that you have changed all of that. They don't get to show that." I AA 013. The court, sua sponte, steps in and comments that the speaker needs to direct her statement to the

court and not the Appellant. <u>Id</u>. She also tells the court that this whole crime was senseless, that she wishes her son had his best friend back, and that she hopes justice is served. I AA 013-014. The victim speaker also never once mentions any specific bad acts about the Appellant unrelated to the instant case.

The final speaker, Vennie Tolbert-Rodgers, was the mother of one of the victims. I AA 014. She told the court, "But just like everyone else said, she's not innocent in this situation. She did not have to go. She had several conversations with City prior to. She did not stop the situation from happening. She was just in there and didn't stop the situation as it was unfolding." I AA 015. She also told the court how the crime has impacted her and her children, the type of person her son was, and discussed the Appellant's involvement in the crime. I AA 014-017. This speaker also only discussed the crime itself, and never mentioned any prior acts by the Appellant other than her acts related to the immediate incident.

As such, Appellant's cross-examination of the victim impact speakers was not necessary because none of the three speakers ever discussed any specific prior acts by the Appellant. Instead, they only discussed the instant crime and the impact it had on themselves and their families. The instant case is unlike <u>Buschauer</u>, where cross-examination was warranted when the speaker discussed previous spousal abuse allegations of the defendant. Here, Appellant cites to absolutely no specifics of any allegations that would qualify as specific bad acts that would even warrant cross-

examination had the she requested it. The comments by the victim speakers only related to the crime itself and the Appellant's involvement. Therefore, this claim should be denied, and the conviction should be affirmed.

### **CONCLUSION**

Wherefore, the State respectfully requests that Appellant's Judgment of Conviction be AFFIRMED.